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INTERNATIONAL TRADE
COMMISSION

[Investigation No. 337-TA-1016]

Certain Access Control Systems and
Components Thereof; Institution of
Investigation

AGENCY: U.S. International Trade
Commission.

ACTION: Notice.

SUMMARY: Notice is hereby given that a
complaint was filed with the U.S.
International Trade Commission on July
5, 2016, under section 337 of the Tariff
Act of 1930, as amended, 19 U.S.C.
1337, on behalf of The Chamberlain
Group, Inc. of Elmhurst, Illinois. A letter
supplementing the complaint was filed
on July 19, 2016. The complaint, as
supplemented, alleges violations of
section 337 based upon the importation
into the United States, the sale for
importation, and the sale within the
United States after importation of
certain access control systems and
components thereof by reason of
infringement of certain claims of U.S.
Patent No. 7,161,319 (“‘the 319 patent”);
U.S. Patent No. 7,196,611 (“‘the '611
patent”); and U.S. Patent No. 7,339,336
(“the ’336 patent”). The complaint
further alleges that an industry in the
United States exists as required by
subsection (a)(2) of section 337.

The complainant requests that the
Commission institute an investigation
and, after the investigation, issue a
limited exclusion order and cease and
desist orders.

ADDRESSES: The complaint, except for
any confidential information contained
therein, is available for inspection
during official business hours (8:45 a.m.
to 5:15 p.m.) in the Office of the
Secretary, U.S. International Trade
Commission, 500 E Street SW., Room
112, Washington, DC 20436, telephone
(202) 205-2000. Hearing impaired
individuals are advised that information
on this matter can be obtained by
contacting the Commission’s TDD
terminal on (202) 205-1810. Persons
with mobility impairments who will
need special assistance in gaining access
to the Commission should contact the
Office of the Secretary at (202) 205—
2000. General information concerning
the Commission may also be obtained
by accessing its internet server at http://
www.usitc.gov. The public record for
this investigation may be viewed on the
Commission’s electronic docket (EDIS)
at http://edis.usitc.gov.

FOR FURTHER INFORMATION CONTACT: The
Office of Docket Services, U.S.
International Trade Commission,
telephone (202) 205-1802.

Authority: The authority for institution of
this investigation is contained in section 337
of the Tariff Act of 1930, as amended, and
in section 210.10 of the Commission’s Rules
of Practice and Procedure, 19 CFR 210.10
(2016).

Scope of Investigation: Having
considered the complaint, the U.S.
International Trade Commission, on
August 3, 2016, ORDERED THAT—

(1) Pursuant to subsection (b) of
section 337 of the Tariff Act of 1930, as
amended, an investigation be instituted
to determine whether there is a
violation of subsection (a)(1)(B) of
section 337 in the importation into the
United States, the sale for importation,
or the sale within the United States after
importation of certain access control
systems and components thereof by
reason of infringement of one or more of
claims 1-4, 7-12, 15, and 16 of the "319
patent; claims 1, 10-12, and 18-25 of
the ’611 patent; and claims 7, 11-13,
15-23, and 34-36 of the "336 patent, and
whether an industry in the United
States exists as required by subsection
(a)(2) of section 337;

(2) For the purpose of the
investigation so instituted, the following
are hereby named as parties upon which
this notice of investigation shall be
served:

(a) The complainant is: The
Chamberlain Group, Inc., 845 Larch
Avenue, Elmhurst, IL 60126.

(b) The respondents are the following
entities alleged to be in violation of
section 337, and are the parties upon
which the complaint is to be served:

Techtronic Industries Co. Ltd., Unit
B-F 24/F CDW Building, 388 Castle
Peak Road, Tusen Wan, New Territories,
Hong Kong.

Techtronic Industries North America,
Inc., 303 International Circle, Suite
4900, Hunt Valley, MD 21030.

One World Technologies Inc., 1428
Pearman Dairy Road, Anderson, SC
29625.

OWT Industries Inc., 225
Pumpkintown Highway, Pickens, SC
29671.

Ryobi Technologies, Inc., 1428
Pearman Dairy Road, Anderson, SC
29625.

Et Technology (Wuxi) Co., Ltd., Xiqun
Road (East Section), Xinqu Meicun
Industrial Cluster Zone, Wuxi 214112,
Zhejiang China.

(3) For the investigation so instituted,
the Chief Administrative Law Judge,
U.S. International Trade Commission,
shall designate the presiding
Administrative Law Judge.

The Office of Unfair Import
Investigations will not participate as a
party in this investigation.

Responses to the complaint and the
notice of investigation must be

submitted by the named respondents in
accordance with section 210.13 of the
Commission’s Rules of Practice and
Procedure, 19 CFR 210.13. Pursuant to
19 CFR 201.16(e) and 210.13(a), such
responses will be considered by the
Commission if received not later than 20
days after the date of service by the
Commission of the complaint and the
notice of investigation. Extensions of
time for submitting responses to the
complaint and the notice of
investigation will not be granted unless
good cause therefor is shown.

Failure of a respondent to file a timely
response to each allegation in the
complaint and in this notice may be
deemed to constitute a waiver of the
right to appear and contest the
allegations of the complaint and this
notice, and to authorize the
administrative law judge and the
Commission, without further notice to
the respondent, to find the facts to be as
alleged in the complaint and this notice
and to enter an initial determination
and a final determination containing
such findings, and may result in the
issuance of an exclusion order or a cease
and desist order or both directed against
the respondent.

By order of the Commission.
Issued: August 3, 2016.
Lisa R. Barton,
Secretary to the Commission.
[FR Doc. 2016—18807 Filed 8—8—16; 8:45 am]
BILLING CODE 7020-02-P

JUDICIAL CONFERENCE OF THE
UNITED STATES

Hearings of the Judicial Conference
Advisory Committees on the Federal
Rules of Appellate, Bankruptcy, Civil,
and Criminal Procedure

AGENCY: Judicial Conference of the
United States, Advisory Committees on
the Federal Rules of Appellate,
Bankruptcy, Civil, and Criminal
Procedure.

ACTION: Notice of proposed amendments
and open hearings.

SUMMARY: The Advisory Committees on
the Federal Rules of Appellate,
Bankruptcy, Civil, and Criminal
Procedure have proposed amendments
to the following rules and forms:

Appellate Rules: 8, 11, 25, 28.1, 29, 31,
39, and 41, and Form 4

Bankruptcy Rules: 3002.1, 5005, 8002,
8006, 8011, 8013, 8015, 8016, 8017,
new Rule 8018.1, 8022, 8023, and
new Part VIII Appendix; and Official
Forms 309F, 417A, 417C, 425A, 425B,
425G, and 426
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Civil Rules: 5, 23, 62, and 65.1
Criminal Rules: 12.4, 45, and 49

The text of the proposed rules and the
accompanying Committee Notes are
posted on the Judiciary’s Web site at:
http://www.uscourts.gov/rules-policies/
proposed-amendments-published-
public-comment.

All written comments and suggestions
with respect to the proposed
amendments may be submitted on or
after the opening of the period for
public comment on August 15, 2016,
but no later than February 15, 2017.
Written comments must be submitted
electronically, following the
instructions provided on the Web site.
All comments submitted will be
available for public inspection.

Public hearings are scheduled to be
held on these proposed amendments as
follows:

o Appellate Rules in Washington, DC,
on October 17, 2016, and in Denver,
Colorado, on January 20, 2017;

¢ Bankruptcy Rules in Pasadena,
California, on January 24, 2017;

¢ Civil Rules in Washington, DC, on
November 3, 2016, in Phoenix, Arizona,
on January 4, 2017, and in Dallas/Fort
Worth, Texas, on February 16, 2017;

e Criminal Rules in Phoenix, Arizona,
on January 4, 2017, and in Washington,
DG, on February 24, 2017.

Those wishing to testify must contact
the Secretary by email at: Rules
Support@ao.uscourts.gov, with a copy
mailed to the address below at least 30
days before the hearing.

FOR FURTHER INFORMATION CONTACT:
Rebecca A. Womeldorf, Secretary,
Comumittee on Rules of Practice and
Procedure of the Judicial Conference of
the United States, Thurgood Marshall
Federal Judiciary Building, One
Columbus Circle NE., Suite 7-240,
Washington, DC 20544, Telephone (202)
502-1820.

Dated: August 4, 2016.
Rebecca A. Womeldorf,

Secretary, Committee on Rules of Practice
and Procedure, Judicial Conference of the
United States.

[FR Doc. 2016-18874 Filed 8—8-16; 8:45 am]
BILLING CODE 2210-55-P

DEPARTMENT OF JUSTICE

Foreign Claims Settlement
Commission

[F.C.S.C. Meeting and Hearing Notice No.
7-16]

Sunshine Act Meeting

The Foreign Claims Settlement
Commission, pursuant to its regulations

(45 CFR part 503.25) and the
Government in the Sunshine Act (5
U.S.C. 552b), hereby gives notice in
regard to the scheduling of open
meetings as follows:

Tuesday, August 16, 2016: 10:00
a.m.—Issuance of Proposed Decisions in
claims against Iraq.

11:00 a.m.—Issuance of Proposed
Decisions in claims against Libya.

Status: Open.

All meetings are held at the Foreign
Claims Settlement Commission, 600 E
Street NW., Washington, DC. Requests
for information, or advance notices of
intention to observe an open meeting,
may be directed to: Patricia M. Hall,
Foreign Claims Settlement Commission,
600 E Street NW., Suite 6002,
Washington, DC 20579. Telephone:
(202) 616-6975.

Brian M. Simkin,

Chief Counsel.

[FR Doc. 2016—-18947 Filed 8-5-16; 11:15 am]
BILLING CODE 4410-BA-P

DEPARTMENT OF JUSTICE

Notice of Lodging of Proposed
Modifications of Consent Decree
Under the Clean Air Act

On August 3, 2016, the Department of
Justice lodged proposed modifications
to a Consent Decree with the United
States District Court for the Eastern
District of Virginia in United States et
al. v. Virginia Electric and Power
Company, Civil Case Nos. 1:03—cv—
00517 & 1:03—cv—00603 (E.D. Va.).

The original Consent Decree was
entered on October 3, 2003, and
resolved civil claims under the Clean
Air Act at a number of the Defendant’s
electric-generating facilities located in
Virginia and West Virginia. The Consent
Decree imposed various pollution
control requirements on Defendant’s
facilities, including requirements
related to particulate matter emissions
at Defendant’s Bremo Power Station
located in Fluvanna County, Virginia.
The Consent Decree also required the
Defendant to fund certain
environmental mitigation projects,
including certain projects identified by
the co-plaintiff States of Connecticut
and Virginia.

The parties to the Consent Decree
have agreed to certain modifications set
forth in three amendments to the
Consent. The first amendment modifies
the Consent Decree’s particulate matter
provisions to recognize that the Bremo
Power Station no longer burns coal or
fuel oil and instead is fired exclusively
with natural gas. The second and third
amendments modify the Consent

Decree’s environmental mitigation
project provisions to allow the co-
plaintiff States of Connecticut and
Virginia to use remaining environmental
mitigation funds on additional
environmental mitigation projects.

The publication of this notice opens
a period for public comment on the
proposed modifications to the Consent
Decree. Comments should be addressed
to the Assistant Attorney General,
Environment and Natural Resources
Division, and should refer to United
States et al. v. Virginia Electric and
Power Company, Civil Case Nos. 1:03—
cv—00517 & 1:03—cv—-00603 (E.D. Va.),
D.]. Ref. No. 90-5-2—-1-07122. All
comments must be submitted no later
than thirty (30) days after the
publication date of this notice.
Comments may be submitted either by
email or by mail:

To submit .

comments: Send them to:

By email ....... pubcomment-ees.enrd @
usdoj.gov

By mail ......... Assistant Attorney General

U.S. DOJ—ENRD, P.O. Box
7611, Washington, DC
20044-7611

During the public comment period,
the proposed amendments to the
Consent Decree may be examined and
downloaded at this Justice Department
Web site: https://www.justice.gov/enrd/
consent-decrees. We will provide a
paper copy of the proposed
amendments upon written request and
payment of reproduction costs. Please
mail your request and payment to:
Consent Decree Library, U.S. DOJ—
ENRD, P.O. Box 7611, Washington, DC
20044-7611.

Please enclose a check or money order
for $3.75 (25 cents per page
reproduction cost) payable to the United
States Treasury.

Jeffrey Sands,

Assistant Section Chief, Environmental
Enforcement Section. Environment and
Natural Resources Division

[FR Doc. 2016-18797 Filed 8—-8—16; 8:45 am]
BILLING CODE 4410-15-P

OFFICE OF MANAGEMENT AND
BUDGET

Uniform Administrative Requirements,
Cost Principles, and Audit
Requirements

AGENCY: Executive Office of the
President, Office of Management and
Budget.

ACTION: Notice of availability.
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